
Targeted Food Stamp Outreach (TFSO) 

Request for Proposals 

Questions and Answers 

 

Question 1 Is the $150,000 a one year amount that must be available for the 

match, or is that amount for the duration of the 5 year contract? 

Answer: $150,000 represents the minimum amount of non-federal funds 

coming from private non-governmental sources that needs to be 

contributed in the first year of the contract.  If the contract is 

renewed beyond the first year, at least $150,000 in additional 

matching funds must be identified each year in order to continue the 

program.  When completing the 5 year projected budget, assume 

that the first year non-federal funding amount will be available for 

the subsequent 4 years.  Also, please note that the Targeted Food 

Stamp Outreach Program is a reimbursement program, not a match 

program.  Federal funds are available to reimburse contractors for 

50% of the approved expenditures. 

Question 2 If an organization receives some funding already to perform food 

stamp outreach, can we use OTDA funds to increase and 

complement those activities and food stamp goals, or will it be 

required that the performance targets for both programs be kept 

separately?   

Answer: An organization may use TFSO funding to expand upon eligible 

activities already taking place, but may not use these funds to 

supplant funds or duplicate existing efforts.   An organization would 

need to demonstrate how funding sources are cost allocated 

between the two outreach efforts, and define and track the separate 

outcomes for each. 



Question 3 Can local government dollars, which have no federal basis at all, be 

the local funding request under this RFP?  Page 5 of the RFP implies 

that the local funds provided by applicants must be non-“federal”.  

Yet page 6 implies that the local funds must be “non-

governmental”. 

Answer:  The non-federal local funds must be from private non-governmental 

third parties.   

Question 4 What is required in regards to funding?  Does the applicant have to 

have local funding or just provide proof that they have $150,000 

non-OTDA funds to front the project?  

Answer: For the purpose of proposal submission, an applying organization 

must complete and submit Attachment B5 to identify the source and 

amount of eligible dedicated funding to draw down an equal amount 

of Federal reimbursement funding.  If a contract is awarded, the 

contractor will be required to provide verification of the non-federal 

funds being used to support TFSO activities. 

Question 5 Can the LDSS apply for the funds and then contract parts out for 

outreach with one or more agencies? 

Answer: An LDSS is not eligible to apply as the lead contract agency.  

Organizations eligible to apply are limited to not-for-profit 

organizations, such as community based organizations.  An agency 

must be a 501(c) (3), tax-exempt organization incorporated for a 

purpose sufficiently broad enough to include providing services or 

other assistance to economically or socially disadvantaged individuals 

or families. 

Question 6 What types of other organizations can assist (including 

municipalities) with the remaining 50% of the project costs and how 

does that get explained in the proposal?  For example, can we use 

United Way, and if not, why? 



Answer: The required non-federal fund contribution may include donations 

from non-federal third parties, such as charitable 

foundations/organizations.  The 50% contributed by the applicant 

organization is reflected in the proposal in several ways.  As 

mentioned above, Attachment B5 must be completed to indicate the 

source and amount of the non-federal funding.  The Technical 

proposal would reflect the services and activities that will be 

supported with the federal and non-federal funds.  Finally, the Line-

item budget is used to show what specific expenses the 50% local 

contribution will cover.  As a charitable organization, the United Way 

would be an eligible source for the 50% non-federal contribution. 

Question 7 Are Community Block Grant funds allowable match funds if we are 

currently using them to provide outreach activities? 

Answer: No.  Only cash donations from non-federal third parties such as 

charitable foundations/organizations can be used as the local 

contribution. 

Question 8 Can the value of outreach activities performed by volunteers be 

used as local funds? 

Answer: In kind services cannot be used toward the local contribution 

requirement. 

Question 9 Do the local funds have to be at least $150,000 if the grant amount 

is less than $150,000? 

Answer: Since the minimum grant award is $150,000, the minimum amount 

of the local contribution also needs to be $150,000. 

Question 10 Will a letter from a potential funder stating they are very interested 

in supporting our proposal at the amount requested but cannot 

commit before July 29th be a sufficient alternative to an up-front 

local funding contribution?  If not, do you have any other 

suggestions for how to address this issue? 



        Answer: In order to be considered for an award, OTDA must have assurance 

that at least $150,000, in non-federal funds from an eligible third 

party is in place by the start date of the contract.  A letter from an 

“interested” potential funder would not qualify. 

Question 11 Can lead organizations who are responding to the RFP identify 

some of the agencies who are part of the initiative once they are 

awarded a contract from OTDA?  If we decide to secure 

organizations at a later date through a competitive process, would 

our proposal be penalized during the scoring/review process? 

Answer: If the lead applicant organization plans to partner with other 

agencies to perform certain outreach activities, this arrangement 

should be detailed in the proposal narrative and budget.  While it is 

preferable to have agreements with the specific agencies in place, we 

recognize that these often cannot occur until after the contract is 

awarded. 

Question 12 The proposal indicates that OTDA would prefer for organizations 

participating in the project to use myBenefits.  What type of 

functionality does the myBenefits tool have for tracking the 

outreach services offered to clients and to track the outputs and 

outcomes of the community organizations working on the project?  

Would OTDA approve or penalize the use of an alternative 

screening or is myBenefits the only option?  If that is the case, how 

will we be able to get access to client data and work needed by 

organizations to effectively manage their operations? 

Answer: Applicant organizations are expected to maximize use of myBenefits 

to assist individuals in applying for food stamps.  This is an online tool 

that not only screens for multiple programs, but can be used to apply 

online for food stamp benefits.  Soon applicants will also be able to 

apply online for HEAP and recertify for both food stamps and public 

assistance.  Customers can also obtain benefit information online at 

www.myBenefits.ny.gov .  Therefore, the tool should be used to help 

http://www.mybenefits.ny.gov/


customers find out about and apply for food stamps.  Providers 

would need to find a method to track the outputs and outcomes of 

the community organizations working on the project.   

Question 13 The proposal indicates that $1.5 million is available for NYC and 

that one organization can receive no more than $900,000.  What if 

an organization is writing a joint proposal and the second 

organization will serve as co-lead on the effort?  Would it be 

possible to submit a program budget for the full $1.5 million or 

some value greater than the $900,000? 

Answer: A proposal may be submitted for $1.5 million.  The RFP states that half of 
the $3 million that is available is expected to be awarded to service 
providers in NYC.  If there is more than one viable NYC applicant, the 
maximum amount one applicant could receive is $900,000, unless the 
amount requested from other selected applicants is less than $600,000.  
Please note that a joint proposal submitted on behalf of two agencies 
must designate one of the agencies as the lead agency for contract 
purposes. 

 

Question 14 If we do not intend to purchase services from M/WBE vendors, are 

we still subject to MWBE compliance requirements?  We are 

subcontracting with community based organizations for the 

delivery of social services.  Are we still required to fill out the form 

and submit? 

Answer: All applicants should review Appendix Z which outlines the M/WBE 

program participation and goal requirements of all OTDA State 

contractors, and be familiar with OTDA’s M/WBE compliance 

requirements.  All applicants are required to complete the M/WBE 

Subcontractor Utilization Plan and Certification of Good Faith Efforts 

Forms and include it in with their proposals.  In addition to direct 

subcontracting on State contracts, applicants/contractors may also 

utilize other vendors to support program operations where 

applicable.  Using NYS certified M/WBEs as providers of these second 



tier services can be counted in satisfaction of the goals established 

for this procurement. 

Question 15 Will in-kind services provided by subcontract agencies be included 

as part of the reimbursable expenses? 

Answer: Any in kind services provided by subcontract agencies are not 

reimbursable, and cannot be used toward the local funding 

contribution requirement. 

Question 16 Can you provide more clarification on specific mediation activities 

that are allowable under this contract?  Our outreach network has 

traditionally helped clients to navigate the food stamps process to 

make sure that our outreach and screening efforts ultimately work 

to get clients enrolled in benefits. While we do not represent clients 

in disputes about their cases with government agencies, we do walk 

clients through a step by step process that will ultimately lead to 

food stamps enrollment.    

Answer: Section III C of the RFP (pgs. 7-8) lists the activities that are allowable 

and those that are prohibited. Based on the description provided, the 

assistance you currently offer is allowable. 

Question 17 Can funding received from the Nutrition Consortium of New York 

State under the Nutrition Outreach and Education Program (NOEP) 

be used for the non-Federal funding contribution? 

Answer No.   

Question 18 Can funding received from the New York State Department of 

Health under the Hunger Prevention and Nutrition Assistance 

Program (HPNAP) be used for the non-Federal match? 

       Answer No. 

Question 19 How many agencies will be granted awards in NYC? 



Answer: We are unable to answer this question.  The number would depend 

on the number of NYC applicants, the amount of funds requested, 

and the results of the evaluation process. 

Question 20 Can you provide the mailing address and contact person of the NYC 

LDSS? 

Answer: See attached county listing of all Food Stamp Directors.   
  

Question 21 What is the process for obtaining support from NYC-HRA of a TFSO 

Proposal? 

Answer: HRA/DDS reviews proposals very carefully and gives each request 

serious consideration; paying particular attention to programmatic, 

fiscal, administrative, and legal aspects.  Requests for Letters of 

Support and/or Partnership (including the supporting documentation 

outlined below) must be submitted to HRA/DSS and received no later 

than two (2) weeks prior to the deadline for the solicited funding 

opportunity.  Except in extraordinary circumstances, HRA/DSS will 

not commit to perform any tasks (including participant referrals) 

unless it has been determined that the proposed program meets an 

unmet need, is innovative, and consistent with HRA/DSS’ goals and 

objectives through discussions prior to the development of the 

proposal. 

 The following outlines the information that must be included in all 

requests for a Letter of Partnership and/or Support: 

1. Cover letter with the following information: 

 Name of funding opportunity and grantor; 

 Brief description of the proposal, the objective and 

the issue to be addressed; 

 Total dollars requested, including any in-kind 

commitment to the program 

 Target population and geographic area; 



 Number of clients to be served, including job 

placements if relevant; 

 Outcome measurements; 

 Reimbursement model (whether it is performance-

based or cash-based); 

 Whether an evaluation of the program will be 

prepared and a report issued and if not, how you 

plan to determine the effectiveness of the program 

model; 

 Attestation that the organization’s information on 

the Vendor Information Exchange System (VENDEX) 

is updated, valid, and there are no liens or caution 

concerns (www.nyc.gov/vendex); 

 Statement that a recent audit was conducted and 

there were no serious findings reported; 

 DUNS Number; 

 Tax Identification Number; and 

 Authorized contact person, telephone number and 

email address of the requesting organization. 

2. Years the organization has experience providing this type of 

service and corresponding performance outcomes that 

support the organization’s track record. 

3. A substantially complete written proposal (excluding 

appendices). 

4. A budget listing personnel, other than the personnel 

services, and overhead costs associated with the program 

in addition to any budget forms deemed necessary by the 

grantor. 

5. Listing of all New York City or other governmental contracts 

awarded (prime or sub-contractor). 

 

http://www.nyc.gov/vendex


Please send all of the above information via email, mail or 

messenger* to: 

 

 Kathleen O’Hara 

 Director, Office of Grant Administration 

 NYC Human Resources Administration/DSS 

 180 Water Street – Room 1116 

 New York, NY 10038 

 oharak@hra.nyc.gov  

* Hand-delivered requests should be taken to the mailroom located 

on the first floor (please retain receipt). 

Question 22 Since one of the allowable expenses is “training or train the trainer 

programs for food stamp outreach workers”,  

 How much training will be required? 

 How long will these trainings last? 

 How many of them will there be? 

 Where will they be held? 

 How many of them require all food stamp outreach workers to 

attend? (Can one person attend, and return to train remaining 

food stamp outreach staff)? 

 Will any of the trainings be available via webinars or other 

distance learning methods? 

 

Answer:        The training you refer to will not be conducted by OTDA.  If this is the 

outreach strategy you propose to offer, you would decide on the 

training’s content, length, size and method of delivery, and be 

responsible for ensuring the proper instruction is provided. 

 

 Question 23 What equipment is required for food stamp outreach workers?   

 

mailto:oharak@hra.nyc.gov


Answer: Once again, any decision about equipment needs rests with the 

applicant organization. 

 

Question 24 Are fringe benefits paid by local agencies, such as Workers’ 

Compensation and Unemployment Insurance allowable expenses?  

Answer: Yes.  Fringe benefits, including Social Security tax, Workers’ 

Compensation, Unemployment Insurance, and Disability Insurance 

are allowable expenses. 

 

Question 25 Are there specialized materials or forms required?  Will these be 

supplied or do we need to budget for them?  If so, what kind of 

costs per hundred? 

Answer: OTDA does not anticipate requiring contractors to use any specialized 

materials or forms.  If an applicant organization believes 

materials/forms are needed in order to fulfill outreach activities, the 

cost of these items should be included in your proposed budget. 

 

Question 26 Is there a guideline or cap for direct expense administrative costs or 

in-kind/local contribution administrative costs? 

Answer: There is no cap placed on administrative costs that are supported 

with the federal food stamp funds and the local cash contribution 

secured by the applicant organization.  However, as noted in the 

Evaluation Criteria section of the RFP, priority will be given to 

budgets that minimize administrative costs in favor of direct program 

outreach costs.  Please note that in-kind costs are not allowed to be 

part of the TFSO budget. 

 

Question 27 The RFP indicates on page 5 that the intention of this program is to 

outreach to geographic areas of the State that have not been 

previously served with Food Stamp outreach activities.  Can we 

apply if we are funded through NOEP to serve a county but are 

interested in serving a specific population in that county that is 

underserved?  For instance, we operate the NOEP program in 



Westchester County – can we apply to serve specific areas in 

northern Westchester County that are underserved? 

Answer: Yes.  However, as stated in the answer to question 2, the TFSO funds 

may only be used to expand upon eligible activities already taking 

place, and cannot be used to supplant existing funds or duplicate 

existing efforts. 

 

Question 28 Please define the state nutrition education plan (referenced on 

page 8) and clarify what is expected of applicants in terms of 

coordination with nutrition education activities.  Is there a formal 

plan with deliverables and targets that applicants should review 

and be aware of when developing our outreach strategies?  If so, 

how can we access this plan?  If there is no formal plan, please 

clarify the expectations of applicants in developing outreach 

programs that comport with this requirement. 

Answer: A TFSO proposal can serve to demonstrate a community’s 

commitment to improving the nutrition and health of low income 

residents. As organizations decide how to structure local Food Stamp 

outreach activities, they can also devise ways to promote 

partnerships and strategies to raise awareness of nutrition assistance 

and the benefits of SNAP. NYS administers the ‘Eat Smart New York! 

Program’. This program provides local nutrition education services to 

food stamp recipients or food stamp eligibles. At the local level, the 

program is administered by the Cornell Cooperative Extension. 

Outreach providers ARE NOT expected to provide nutrition 

education.  However,outreach providers can inform Food Stamp 

applicants about the availability of nutrition education as part of the 

food stamp program. Applicants for TFSO can collaborate with local 

CCE ESNY educators to assist them with communiticating the 

nutritional benefits of the food stamp program.  Some collaborative 

activities include, but are not limited to, partnering with ESNY 

educators at farmers markets or other outreach events to provide 



food stamp eligibles information about how food stamps can help 

you to purchase healthy food, or providing ESNY outreach materials 

to food stamp applicants. For other ideas about how Outreach 

providers can colloborate with FS nutrition education providers, see 

this community Toolkit for Food Stamp Outreach:  

http://www.fns.usda.gov/snap/outreach/pdfs/toolkit/2011/Community/

Communications/partnerships.pdf 

 

Question 29 Please clarify the definition of non-Federal funds that may be used 

to access reimbursement.  Page 9 of the RFP states “Only non-

Federal funds may be used to access the reimbursement.  The non-

Federal funds may include cash donations from non-Federal third 

parties such as charitable foundations/organizations.  The non-

Federal funds cannot include private cash donations from an 

individual”.)   Catholic Charities Community Services (CCCS) receives 

a significant subsidy from Catholic Charities, Archdiocese of New 

York (CC), which includes private cash donations from individuals.  

(CCCS and CC are separate, independent not-for-profit corporations, 

each with its own EIN).  Does this policy restrict reimbursement 

under this contract only to cash donations made by charitable 

foundations and organizations? 

 

Answer: The required non-federal fund contribution may include donations 

from non-federal third parties such as charitable 

foundations/organizations, and the Archdiocese of New York would 

qualify as a charitable organization.  Although a portion of the funds 

provided to you by the Archdiocese of New York may have originated 

from private cash donations from individuals, it would be an eligible 

source to serve as the non-federal contribution for TFSO purposes.  

Since these funds are under the control of the Archdiocese of New 

York, and the decision of how they are used rests with them, they 

would no longer be considered donation from private individuals.  

http://www.fns.usda.gov/snap/outreach/pdfs/toolkit/2011/Community/Communications/partnerships.pdf
http://www.fns.usda.gov/snap/outreach/pdfs/toolkit/2011/Community/Communications/partnerships.pdf


 

Question 30 How is New York City defined for the purposes of this solicitation?  

Can applicants provide services to only one county within New York 

City (e.g. Manhattan), or a portion of a county (e.g. Northern 

Manhattan)? Please clarify. 

 

Answer: A NYC applicant organization can choose to serve all of the 5 

boroughs, or may elect to concentrate on serving only certain 

boroughs. 

 

Question 31 Section II.B (page 5) appears to indicate a minimum grant award of 

$150,000, but there is no mention of a maximum award size.  

Please confirm if there is a minimum and/or a maximum, and if so, 

how much these might be. 

Answer: The minimum award amount will be $150,000.  Since half of the 

federal funds are expected to be split evenly between service 

providers located in NYC and those located outside of NYC, the 

maximum award possible would be $1.5 million. 

Question 32 Section IV.B (page 11) indicates that a 5-year summary of 

expenditures is requested.  Given the instability of the current and 

future economic environment, if in years 2-5 a grantee’s available 

local non-federal contribution increases or decreases, could the 

Targeted Food Stamp Outreach grant funds be increased or 

decreased accordingly? 

Answer: If a contractor’s non-federal contribution decreased in subsequent 

years, the federal funding that could be made available would 

decrease proportionately.  However, if a contractors’ non-federal 

contribution decreased to below the $150,000 minimum any 

subsequent year, no additional federal funds could be awarded.  The 

availability of a higher non-federal contribution from a contractor 

would not result in additional federal funds being awarded. 



Question 33 Is assisting applicants to submit Food Stamps applications on-line 

an allowable and reimbursable activity? 

Answer: Such assistance would be an allowable activity, and the cost involved 

(i.e. staff time) would be an eligible expense. 

Question 34 Section II.D (page 9) indicates that “the non-Federal funds cannot 

include private cash donations from an individual”.  If the applicant 

agency’s annual budget includes a percentage from fundraising 

activities, which may include individual cash donations, could these 

agency funds/resources be used to meet the non-Federal match 

requirements? 

Answer: The portion of the non-federal funds raised through fundraising 

activities that are donated by charitable foundations/organizations 

would be an eligible contribution for TFSO purposes.  The portion 

that comes from private individuals would not. 

Question 35 Given that there are no advance funds available, how often will 

reimbursement vouchers be submitted, and what is the projected 

turnaround time for the submitting agencies to receive these 

funds? 

Answer: Vouchers should be submitted on a quarterly basis.  Prompt Payment 

legislation requires that correctly submitted invoices and standard 

vouchers be paid by OSC within 30 days of receipt. 

Question 36  Would a proposal from a consortium of statewide organizations 

that identify specific counties to serve in upstate New York be 

allowable? 

Answer: Yes.  A proposal submitted on behalf of a consortium of statewide 
organizations must designate one of the agencies as the lead agency for 
contract purposes, and must include in their application a description of 
the roles and responsibilities of the lead applicant and each co-applicant. 

 



Question 37 Would a proposal from a consortia comprised of statewide, regional 

and/or county specific organizations to serve specific counties in 

upstate New York be allowable? 

Answer:       Yes.  Such a proposal must designate one of the agencies as the lead 
agency for the consortium, and must include in their application a 
description of the roles and responsibilities of the lead applicant and 
each co-applicant. 

  

Question 38 If the applicant must identify $150,000 in allowable dedicated 

funding on an annual basis for each year of the 5-year cycle October 

1, 2011 – September 30, 2016, must the resulting total amount of 

$750,000 be identifiable at the time of application or just the 

annual requirement of $150,000? 

         Answer: At the time of application, only the $150,000 in non-federal funds 

would need to be identified.  However, when completing the 5 year 

projected budget, assume that the first year amount will also be 

available in the following four years, or $750,000 in this example.  As 

noted in response to question 31, a minimum of $150,000 in non-

federal funds is required each year in order to be eligible for 

additional federal funding. 

Question 39 On Page 5, Section IIB (Available Funds/Award Amounts) the RFP 

states that “Up to $3,000,000 in Federal food stamp funds will be 

combined with $3,000,000 in eligible non-Federal funds identified 

by applicant organizations” and later in the application on Page 6 it 

refers to “non-governmental sources.” Will municipal and/or 

county funds be eligible for this project? 

Answer: Since municipal and county funds originate from a government 

source, they cannot be used toward the local funding contribution 

required by TFSO.  



Question 40 Must the applicant perform all 13 of the Allowable Outreach 

Activities?    

Answer:  No.  An applicant should offer those activities that they feel can best 

help achieve the goals of this RFP.



 

Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Ms. Lisa Freedman 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Albany County Department of 

Social Services 

162 Washington 

Avenue 
 Albany NY 12207 (518) 447-7333 

Ms. Debra Sitterly 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Albany County Department of 

Social Services 

162 Washington 

Avenue 
 Albany NY 12207 (518) 447-7333 

Ms. Kimberly  Scutt 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Allegany County Department of 

Social Services 

County Office 

Building 
7 Court Street Belmont NY 14813 (585) 268-9303 

Ms. Rita Meattey 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Broome County Department of 

Social Services 
36-42 Main Street  Binghamton NY 13905 (607) 778-2600 

Ms. Wendy Green 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Cattaraugus County Department 

of Social Services 

One Leo Moss Drive, 

Suite 6010 
 Olean NY  14760 (716) 373-8070 

Mr. Phillip Bauso 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Cayuga County Department of 

Health and Human Services 
160 Genesee Street  Auburn NY 13021 (315) 253-1451 

Ms. Carmen Hlosta 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Chautauqua County Department 

of Social Services 
H.R. Clothier Building  Mayville NY 14757 (716) 753-4590 

Ms. Rita Ann Sullivan 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Chautauqua County Department 

of Social Services 
H.R. Clothier Building  Mayville NY 14757 (716) 753-4590 

Ms. Veronica Hart 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Chemung County Department of 

Social Services 

425 Pennsylvania 

Avenue 
P.O. Box 588 Elmira NY 14902 (607) 737-5309 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Ms. Bette Osborne 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Chenango County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 590 Court Street Norwich NY 13815 (607) 337-1552 

Ms. Sharon Sutherland 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Chenango County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 590 Court Street Norwich NY 13815 (607) 337-1552 

Ms. Cheryl Tobrocke 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Clinton County Department of 

Social Services 
13 Durkee Street  Plattsburgh NY 12901 (518) 565-3221 

Ms. Karen Pollack 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Columbia County Department of 

Social Services 
25 Railroad Avenue  Hudson NY 12534 

(518) 828-9411 

ext. 103 

Ms. Wynanne Lottridge 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Cortland County Human and 

Health Services Department 
60 Central Avenue  Cortland NY 13045-5590 (607) 753-5305 

Ms. Sylvia E. Armanno 
Food Stamp 

Director  

Delaware County Department of 

Social Services 
 111 Main Street Delhi NY 13753 (607) 832-5400 

Ms. Barbara Leo 
Food Stamp 

Director  

Delaware County Department of 

Social Services 
 111 Main Street Delhi NY 13753 (607) 832-5400 

Ms. Joanne Sinagara 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Dutchess County Department of 

Social Services 
60 Market Street  Poughkeepsie NY   12601 (845) 486-3001 

Ms. Carol Sobolewski 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Erie County Department of Social 

Services 
95 Franklin Street  Buffalo NY 14202 (716) 858-7511 

Mr. Michael Carr 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Erie County Department of Social 

Services 
95 Franklin Street  Buffalo NY 14202 (716) 858-7511 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Ms. Lisa Trapasso 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Essex County Department of 

Social Services 
7551 Court Street P.O. Box 217 Elizabethtown NY 12932-0217 (518) 873-3302 

Ms. Ona Rushford 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Franklin County Department of 

Social Services 
 

355 West Main 

Street 
Malone NY 12953 (518) 481-1873 

Ms. Gail Estey 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Fulton County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 549 4 Daisy Lane Johnstown NY 12095 (518) 736-5640 

Ms. Laura Hall 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Genesee County Department of 

Social Services 

5130 East Main 

Street 
Suite #3 Batavia NY 14020 

(585) 344-2580 

Ext. 6405 

Ms. Fran DelGaudio 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Greene County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 528 411 Main Street Catskill NY 12414 (518) 719-3646 

Ms. Jackie D. Cole 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Hamilton County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 725 White Birch Lane Indian Lake NY 12842-0725 (518) 648-6131 

Ms. Debbie Smith 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Herkimer County Department of 

Social Services 

301 North 

Washington Street 
Suite 2110 Herkimer NY 13350 (315) 867-1222 

Mr. Irvin Bunce 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Herkimer County Department of 

Social Services 

301 North 

Washington Street 
Suite 2110 Herkimer NY 13350 (315) 867-1222 

Mr. James Schell 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Jefferson County Department of 

Social Services 
250 Arsenal Street  Watertown NY 13601 (315) 785-3101 

Ms. Caroline Virkler Food Stamp Lewis County Department of P.O. Box 193 5724 Stowe Street Lowville NY 13367 (315) 376-5402 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Director Social Services 

Ms. Pennie Gettman 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Lewis County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 193 5724 Stowe Street Lowville NY 13367 (315) 376-5402 

Ms. Sharon Koch 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Livingston County Department of 

Social Services 

3 Livingtson County 

Campus 
 Mt. Morris NY 14510-1699 (585) 243-7300 

Ms. Pam Heintz 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Madison County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 637 North Court Street Wampsville NY  13163 (315) 366-2248 

Ms. Nancy Forgue 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Monroe County Department of 

Social Services 
111 Westfall Road  Rochester NY 14620 (585) 753-6298 

Ms. Johanna Delcostello 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Montgomery County Department 

of Social Services 

County Office 

Building 
P.O. Box 745 Fonda NY 12068-0745 (518) 853-8290 

Ms. Mary Mitchell 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Nassau County Department of 

Social Services 

60 Charles Lindbergh 

Boulevard 
 Uniondale NY 11553 (516) 227-7403 

Ms. Karen Welkis 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Nassau County Department of 

Social Services 

60 Charles Lindbergh 

Boulevard 
 Uniondale NY 11553 (516) 227-7403 

Ms.  Kathleen O’Hara 
Director, Office of  

Grant Admin. 

New York City Human Resources 

Administration/DSS 
180 Water Street Room 1116 New York NY 10038 (212) 331-4025 

Ms. Pamela Gatto 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Niagara County Department of 

Social Services 
 20 East Avenue Lockport NY 14095-0506 (716) 439-7604 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Ms. Teresa Tong 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Oneida County Department of 

Social Services 
800 Park Avenue  Utica NY 13501 (315) 798-5733 

Ms. Ava Kerznowski 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Onondaga County Department of 

Social Services 
Civic Center 

421 Montgomery 

Street 
Syracuse NY 13202 

(315) 435-2985 

ext. 143 

Ms. Andrea McGraw 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Ontario County Department of 

Social Services 

3010 County 

Complex Drive 
 Canandaigua NY 14424-1296 (585) 396-4014 

Ms. Patricia Davis 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Ontario County Department of 

Social Services 

3010 County 

Complex Drive 
 Canandaigua NY 14424-1296 (585) 396-4014 

Ms. June 
Gorecki-

Miller 

Food Stamp 

Director 

Orange County Department of 

Social Services 
Box Z 11 Quarry Road Goshen NY 10924 (845) 291-4311 

Ms. Terri Torchio 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Orange County Department of 

Social Services 
Box Z 11 Quarry Road Goshen NY 10924 (845) 291-4311 

Ms. Beverly Fackler 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Orleans County Department of 

Social Services 
14016 Route 31 West  Albion NY 14411 

(585) 589-7000 

ext. 3228 

Ms. Addie Dolbear 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Oswego County Department of 

Social Services 
100 Spring Street PO Box 1320 Mexico NY 13114 (315) 963-5435 

Ms. Cynthia Lane 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Otsego County Department of 

Social Services 
197 Main Street  Cooperstown NY 13326 (607) 547-4244 

Ms. JoAnna Grainger Food Stamp Putnam County Department of 110 Old Route Six  Carmel NY 10512 (845) 225-7040 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Director Social Services Center ext. 1201 

Mr. Anthony Burke 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Rensselaer County Department of 

Social Services 

127 Bloomingrove 

Drive 
 Troy NY 12180 (518) 833-6005 

Ms. Teresa Lamb 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Rockland County Department of 

Social Services 
Building L Santorium Road Pomona NY 10970 (845) 364-3300 

Ms. Karen Dupree 
Food Stamp 

Director 

St. Lawrence County Department 

of Social Services 
6 Judson Street  Canton NY 13617 (315) 379-2101 

Ms. Elizabeth Boyd 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Saratoga County Department of 

Social Services 
152 West High Street  Ballston Spa NY 12020 (518) 358-2209 

Ms. Dawn Oliver 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Schenectady County Department 

of Social Services 

797 Broadway 

 
 Schenectady NY 12308 (518) 388-4400 

Mr. Randall Ruiz 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Schenectady County Department 

of Social Services 

797 Broadway 

 
 Schenectady NY 12308 (518) 388-4400 

Ms. Caroline Pangburn 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Schoharie County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 687 

284 Main Street, 

2nd Floor 
Schoharie NY 12157 (518) 295-8310 

Ms. Krista Coats 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Schuyler County Department of 

Social Services, Unit 3 

Human Services 

Complex 

323 Owego Street, 

Unit 3 
Montour Falls NY 14865 (607) 535-8303 

Ms. Tina Cooley 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Seneca County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 690 1 DiPronio Drive Waterloo NY 13165-0690 (315) 539-1830 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Ms. Lisa Baker 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Steuben County Department of 

Social Services 

3 East Pulteney 

Square 
 Bath NY 14810 (607) 664-2444 

Ms. Kimberly Staab 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Suffolk County Department of 

Social Services 

3085 Veterans 

Memorial Highway 
 Ronkonkoma NY 11779 (631) 854-9930 

Mr. Kevin Bennett 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Sullivan County Family Services 

Department 
16 Community Lane  Liberty NY 12754 

(845) 292-0100 

ext. 234 

Ms. Julie. Whipple 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Tioga County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 240 1062 Route 38 Owego NY 13827 (607) 687-8301 

Ms. Jean Brockway 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Tompkins County Department of 

Social Services 

Biggs Center Building 

A 

320 West State 

Street 
Ithaca NY 14850 (607) 274-5251 

Ms. Marijane Knudsen 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Ulster County Department of 

Social Services 

1061 Development 

Court 
 Kingston NY 12401-1959 (845) 334-5221 

Ms. Kelly Barker 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Warren County Department of 

Social Services 

Warren County 

Municipal Center 
1340 State Route 9 Lake George NY 12845 (518) 761-7609 

Ms. Janet Trackey 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Warren County Department of 

Social Services 

Warren County 

Municipal Center 
1340 State Route 9 Lake George NY 12845 (518) 761-7609 

Ms. Tracy Carney 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Washington County Department 

of Social Services 

Washington 

Municipal Center 
383 Broadway Fort Edward NY 12828 (518) 746-2322 

Ms. Hollie Rapp Food Stamp Washington County Department Washington 383 Broadway Fort Edward NY 12828 (518) 746-2322 



Title FirstName LastName JobTitle Company Address1 Address2 City State PostalCode Phone# 

Director of Social Services Municipal Center 

Ms. Mary Lippert 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Wayne County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 10 77 Water Street Lyons NY 14489-0010 (315) 946-7600 

Ms. Katherine Waluschka 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Westchester County Department 

of Social Services 

County Office 

Building #2 
112 East Post Road White Plains NY 10801 (914) 995-5502 

Ms. Amber Stackhouse 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Wyoming County Department of 

Social Services 
P.O. Box 231  Warsaw NY 14569-0231 (585) 786-8901 

Ms. Diane M. Simonsen 
Food Stamp 

Director 

Yates County Department of 

Social Services 

417 Liberty Street, 

Suite 2122 
 Penn Yan NY 14527 (315) 536-5183 

 

 


